





then a window. We also know from such
sources that along the west side of the inner
passageway was a solid wall, which in some
cases is drawn as being timber-framed, and in
others i shown as having a doorway and bow
window set Into it. Over the inner passage, the
floor of the room above was carried on beams,
and the east wall of this room linside the gate
itseif) was supported on a massive beam
running between the two west gate towers.
There are traces of the support for this beam
on the inside faces of the gate towers, where
the Victorian restorers have left soma of the
original stonework in place. The stone
arcading on either side of the two passage-
ways was inserted in 1885-87 and replaced the
garlier walling.
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The Stonebow — architectural details

On the east side of the gateway, there are
today two passages. As with the west side,
this was not always the case. The inner arch-
way 15 recorded in the City Minute Books as
having been ordered opened for passengers in
1758, What this means is not altogether clear,
and it is possible that it refers to the opening
up of an original passageway which had been
previously blocked, rather than the ereation of
an entirely new passage. If this were the case,
it would balance the west side and more
especially be in keeping with the style of
archway, The outer archway was created in
the restoration programme of 1885-87, and
until that date had been a window, and is
shown as such on most earier illustrations.
The arcading on either side of the two pass-
ageways is similar to that on the west side of
the gate and belongs to the same period of
restoration. A plague inside the gateway
records the date of this work, As with the west
sile the floor of the room above the inner
Passageway was supported by a baam running
between the inside faces of the two eastern
Hate-towers, and in the west wall of this room
4 window looked into the gateway (see illus-
tration on page 1).

The iron tie-bars, the decorative ends of which
tan be seen on ground and first floor level,
Were inserted during the 1885-87 restoration
Work to prevent further slippage of the gate-
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way. The buttresses against the east range are
undated, but were presumably built later than
the windows as they cut through their hood
mouldings, The need for both tie-bars and
buttresses is apparent when we look at the
main arch of the gate, which & badly con-
torted and leaning outwards, The reasons for
this are not certain, but one possibility is the
presence of an esrly town ditch running
parallel with the town walls in front of the
gate, the soft filling of which would be much
maore unstable than the ground on either side,
and could cause such settlement. There is,
however, no archaeclogical evidence at
presant for a ditch in front of the town wall on
this side of the town, and poor foundations
may simply be the answer.

On either side of the gate arch is a shallow,
projecting tower, incorporating an elaborate
canopied niche at first floor level, The wast
niche holds & statua of the Virgin Mary, patron
saint of the City and Cathedral, while that on
the east has a much restored statue of the
Archanpgel Gabriel holding a scroll in his left
hand and a palm branch in his right. He is
supported by two winged beasts, while Mary
is supported by a winged serpent with a
human head on either side. The two statues
represent the Annunciation. Above the centra
of the arch, and placed rather awkwardly
across the middle string course are the arms of
King James | {1603-1625). On either side of
the statues are the arms of the City of Linceln,
a single gold fleur-de-lys on a red cross on a
silver shield,

Some of the windows of the upper storey are
replacements in sixteenth-century style. A
number of the original windows, were
apparently destroyed during an election riot in
the eighteenth century. Above the upper
storey is a battlemented parapet, with a nine-
teanth-century clock in the centre, This clock
which dates from 18BB replaced an earier
clock given to the City in 1835. In a late sight-
eenth century print a sundial is shown in the
same position, and it is this sundial which is
referred to in the City Registers as ‘being much
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Pen and ink drawing of the Stonebow from the south by an unknawn artist, September 1803,

On view in the Usher Gallery, Lincoin,

The Guildhall itself is in two parts — an outer
chamber and an inner chamber. The inner
chamber was originally used for meetings of
important officials and for the safekeeping of
the City records. Careful examination of the
central tie-beam in this room shows that it
marks the line of an original timber-framed
wall — the timber framing has been sawn off
and the original joint positions show clearly
along the beam. This partition would, there-
fare, have divided the inner chamber into two
separate parts, but at what dete it was re-
moved is unknown. The ceiling of the inner
chambar is known to have been altered in
1681, and this may have been the occasion.
The central wooden boss on the tie-beam is a
replacement. The two wooden chests kept in
this room belong 1o the sixteenth century and
both have the complicated locking mech-
anisms then in fashion. There are similar
chests in the City and County Museum and the
Usher Gallery.

The main hall is divided from the inner
chamber by a timber-framed wall. The door-
way through this wall has been altered at some
date 1o take the present door. Against the wall
i an elaborate panelied screen of the eight-
eenth century in front of which is the Mayor's
thair framed by two Corinthian columns
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supporting the arms of George 1l (1727-60). On
tha north wall are two portraits, of George |
{1760-1820) and Queen Victoria (1837-1901).

But the chief glory of the Guildhall is its
magnificent open timber roof. Each of the
massive tie-beams is supported by braced wall
posts the feet of which are carved with animal,
human or mythical faces. The tie-beams bear
king-posts with large braces, while on either
side of the room the purling are supported by
arched braces. The bosses on the underside of
the tie-beams are of interest, mostly carved
with rose or foliage motifs while one on the
middie tie-bearn is carved with four faces,

On the lead-covered roof of the Guildhall is the
Mote Bell. Dating from 1371, it is the oldest
bell of its type in England and was rung at the
opening and end of sessions of the Burwar-
mote. |t is stil rung today, over six hundred
years later, for five minutes to summon
members 1o meetings of the City Council,

The Guildhall is the official home of the Mavyor
during his year of office. It is open on the first
Saturday in each month from 10.00-12.00
a.m. and 2.00-4.00 p.m. so that visitors can ba
conducted round the hall and shown the Civic
Insignia housed in the adjacent building.




Watercolour of
Lincaln.
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the Stonebaw by A. Everitt (1824- 1852). On view fn the Usher Gallery,
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City and County Museum —
Sites and Monuments Index

Lincalnshire Archives Office

Lincoln City Library

Usher Gallery

Sir F. Hill Mediaeval Lincain {1948);
Victorian Lincoln (1974)

Sir F. Hill City of Lincoln Civic Insignia {1964}
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